
          

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

& PUBLIC HEARING 
JULY 15, 2019 

9:00 A.M. 
 
 

 

 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 

Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Amenity Center Community Room 
Somerset at the Plantation 

10401 Dartington Drive 
Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
July 15, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 
 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. May 20, 2019 Regular Board Meeting..............................................................................................Page 3 

G. Public Hearing 

1. Proof of Publication...........................................................................................................................Page 7 

2. Receive Public Comments on Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Final Budget 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2019-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Final Budget....................Page 9 

4. Consider Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Annual Assessment Roll 

5. Consider Resolution No. 2018-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Annual Assessment Roll.Page 12 

H. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Street Lighting Project 

2. Update on Brazilian Pepper Removal 

3. Review of Exotic Maintenance on the Mitigation Parcel  

I. New Business 

1. Discuss Options for Treatment Providers 

2. Consider Approval of Treeline Fort Myers, LLC request for Discharge of Stormwater..................Page 35 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2019-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Meeting Schedule............Page 73 

J. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials.................................................................................................................................Page 75 

2. Engineer Report 

3. Field Inspectors Report 

K. Board Members Comments 

L. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 2



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 15, 2019 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The April 15, 2019, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District was called 
to order at 9:07 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room at Somerset at the Plantation located at 10401 
Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on April 3, 2019, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Terry Hammond  Present 
Vice Chairman John Hamilton Present 
Supervisor Lawrence Carr Absent 
Supervisor Joan Pattison  Present 
Supervisor Gary Franz  Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Kathleen Dailey Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
District Engineer Josh Evans (via phone at 9:45 a.m.) JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak  

 
Others present were: Mike Myers of Passarella & Assoc.; Jere Earlywine of Hopping, Green & Sams (via 
phone); Michael McElligott of Special District Services, Inc. (via phone); and the following residents: Jeff 
Gordish, Dale Kraemer, Ray Holter, Peter Grave and others. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Mr. Gordish indicated there were documents he could not open on the website.  Mr. McElligott stated that SDS 
was in process of making all district websites ADA compliant and there were hosting issues that are actively 
being worked on. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  March 18, 2019, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The March 18, 2019, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
Mr. Hammond pointed out under Item G-1, that the reference to “City Board” should be “City Council.”  Mrs. 
Pattison indicated under Item J, the reference to “Mt. Franz” should read, “Mr. Franz.” 
  
A motion was then made by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mrs. Pattison and passed unanimously approving the 
March 18, 2019, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as amended. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update Regarding Street Lighting Project 
 a. Consider Approval of Agreement with American Infrastructure Services for Street Light 
Installation 
 
Mr. Hammond advised that Doug McIntire had received approval for the project in the form of a permit.  He 
indicated that there was $608,000 in the budget for the contract and the cost of the project is $549,098.25 plus 
incidentals.  Mr. Haber stated that AIS pulled the permit with no charge and included a schedule for 
completion.  He suggested the Board approve the agreement, in substantial form, and authorize the Chairman 
to execute same.  Mr. Hamilton asked if there were penalties in the agreement and Mr. Haber responded that 
he believed so, but if not, he can make that change.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Franz, seconded by Mr. Hamilton and passed unanimously approving the AIS 
agreement for street light installation, in substantial form, authorizing the Chairman to execute and subject to 
inclusion of a penalty clause into the agreement. 
 
 2.  Update on Brazilian Pepper Removal 
 
Mr. Hammond gave the history of the issue and stated that Mr. Hirniak had done observations and noted that 
the golf course was aggressively removing a lot of it.  He added that there were still questions on CDD 
responsibility.  Mr. Myers stated that he had met with Frank Lyda from the golf course and showed him the 
map.  He stated that an overlay could be done where the plant has been treated and then see if there is additional 
Brazilian pepper in the conservation area or golf course.  Mr. Hammond added that it was an ongoing project. 
 
 3.  Review of Exotic Maintenance on the Mitigation Parcel 
 
Mr. Myers advised that Aquatic Weed Control completed the first treatment in January and he anticipates they 
will do the second treatment in the next few weeks.  Mr. Myers added that the exotic treatments were working 
and he will review two weeks after the next treatment.  Mr. Franz stated that he would like to go with Mr. 
Myers on that review and there was a consensus of the Board that he do so. 
 
 4.  Update on Report of Bridgetown Pond Maintenance 
 
Dale Kraemer, Chairman of the Bridgetown Ponds & Preserves Committee, gave the history and went over 
the report that was presented to the District.  They recently put their pond maintenance out to bid and noted 
that they switched from Clarke to Lake Doctors in January.  Mr. Hammond stated that he appreciated the work 
they were doing. 
 

Page 4



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Review of Lake Bank Inspection Reports 
 
This item was tabled. 
 
 2.  South Florida Water Management District Notice of Compliance Letter for Arborwood 
Preserve 
 
Mr. Myers stated that a letter had been received acknowledging that the treatment done by the District satisfied 
the complaint. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2019-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Proposed Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2019-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING PROPOSED BUDGETS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING AND 
PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
Mr. Gordish proposed a change to the methodology that was set up for the Somerset maintenance costs.  Mr. 
Hammond stated that the Board made the decision and went through the appeals process.  Mr. Haber added 
that the last time the assessment was levied in the summer of 2018 there was an opportunity to address this 
issue with two public hearings on the proposed budget.  He indicated that there were also public hearings when 
the O&M was levied, which was the time to raise concerns and it can be challenged in court, if not consistent 
with law.  Mr. McElligott added that there had been previous discussions that addressed the methodology and 
that acreage was used versus shoreline.  Mr. Gordish stated that the acreage was not correct. Mr. Haber stated 
that since the proposed budget was being presented today, the proposal should be shared and reviewed with 
SDS so they can make changes in May, if required.   
 
Mr. McElligott went over the proposed budget and all the additions and changes that were made based on 
discussions the previous month.  After discussion, the proposed budget was changed to reflect an increase to 
$7,500 of the Treeline Preserve Maintenance; Panther Mitigation Maintenance was reduced to $90,000; 
Stormwater Drainage for Somerset was lowered to $17,500; and a new item, Stormwater Drainage for 
Bridgetown, was added designating $2,500 as the budgeted amount. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Hamilton, seconded by Mr. Franz and passed unanimously approving Resolution 
No. 2019-01, as amended, setting the Public Hearing for July 15, 2019. 
 
Messrs. Haber and Earlywine excused themselves from the meeting at 10:00 a.m. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 

Page 5



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Financials – Mr. Hammond stated that the Board had received updated financial information.  Mr. Myers noted 
that the mislabeled items in the financials had been correct. 
 
Ms. Dailey reminded the Board that the next meeting was scheduled for May 20, 2019.  
 
 2.  Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Franz opined that Mr. Evans should be present at the meeting.  Mr. Hammond indicated he would speak 
with him about attendance. Mike Myers indicated he would plan to attend meetings, unless advised otherwise. 
 
 3.  Field Inspector’s Report 
 
Mr. Hirniak stated that the condition of the lakes was good and the water levels are higher. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There was a general discussion on the panther mitigation parcel and purchasing credits.  Mr. Myers stated that 
such arrangement was not available to the District and they are locked into the current method. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mrs. Pattison, seconded by 
Mr. Franz and passed unanimously to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 10:59 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



RESOLUTION 2019-03 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND 
ADOPTING THE BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2019, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020; AUTHORIZING 
BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2019, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Arborwood Community Development 
District (“District”) proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2019 and ending September 30, 2020 (“Fiscal Year 2019/2020”) along with an explanatory and 
complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget for 
the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to defray 
all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, including 
reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during the fiscal 
year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
  

Page 9



 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and 
hereby approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, 

is hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget 
may be subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to reflect 
actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Arborwood Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending 
September 30, 2020.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 2019/2020, 
the sum of $4,337,050.00 to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or otherwise, which sum is 
deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during said budget 
year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $ 539,075.00  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2014A-1) $ 502,398.00  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2014A-2) $ 109,038.00  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2014B)  $ 528,195.00  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2018A-1) $ 1,890,554.00  
 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2018A-2) $ 767,790.00  
 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS    $ 4,337,050.00  
  
  
  

Page 10



SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2019/2020 or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2019/2020 may amend its 
Adopted Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. The Board may authorize an increase or decrease in line item appropriations within 
a fund by motion recorded in the minutes if the total appropriations of the fund do 
not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may authorize an increase or decrease in line 

item appropriations within a fund if the total appropriations of the fund do not 
increase and if the aggregate change in the original appropriation item does not 
exceed $10,000 or 10% of the original appropriation. 

 
c. By resolution, the Board may increase any appropriation item and/or fund to reflect 

receipt of any additional unbudgeted monies and make the corresponding change 
to appropriations or the unappropriated balance. 

 
d. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must establish administrative procedures to ensure that 
any budget amendments are in compliance with this Section 3 and Section 189.016, Florida 
Statutes, among other applicable laws.  Among other procedures, the District Manager or Treasurer 
must ensure that any amendments to budget under subparagraphs c. and d. above are posted on the 
District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on the website for at least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 15th DAY OF July, 2019.  
 
ATTEST:      ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY 

 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       By:       
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Budget 

Page 11



RESOLUTION 2019-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND IMPOSING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019/2020; PROVIDING FOR THE 
COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PENALTIES AND INTEREST 
THEREON; CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Arborwood Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit 
of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in Lee County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2019 and ending September 
30, 2020 (“Fiscal Year 2019/2020”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted Budget; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2019/2020; and 
 

Page 12



 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the assessment roll 
(“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” and to certify the portion of the 
Assessment Roll related to certain developed property (“Tax Roll Property”) to the County Tax 
Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method and to directly collect the portion of the Assessment 
Roll relating to the remaining property (“Direct Collect Property”), all as set forth in Exhibit 
“B;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll adopted herein, including that portion certified to the County Tax 
Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The provision of the services, 
facilities, and operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and peculiar benefit to the 
lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. The 
allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted lands is shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” 
and is hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special assessments, 
a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied on benefitted 
lands within the District and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”  The lien of the special 
assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution shall be 
effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), Florida 
Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for operation and 
maintenance assessments. 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; INTEREST.   
 

A. Tax Roll Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Tax Roll Property 
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes in 
accordance with the Uniform Method, as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.”   
 

B. Direct Bill Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Direct Collect 

Page 13



Property shall be collected directly by the District in accordance with Florida law, as 
set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.” Assessments directly collected by the District are 
due in full on December 1, 2019; provided, however, that, to the extent permitted by 
law, the assessments due may be paid in several partial, deferred payments and 
according to the following schedule:  50% due no later than April 15, 2020 and 50% 
due no later than September 30, 2020.  In the event that an assessment payment is not 
made in accordance with the schedule stated above, the whole assessment – including 
any remaining partial, deferred payments for Fiscal Year 2019/2020, shall immediately 
become due and payable; shall accrue interest, penalties in the amount of one percent 
(1%) per month, and all costs of collection and enforcement; and shall either be 
enforced pursuant to a foreclosure action, or, at the District’s sole discretion, collected 
pursuant to the Uniform Method on a future tax bill, which amount may include 
penalties, interest, and costs of collection and enforcement. Any prejudgment interest 
on delinquent assessments shall accrue at the rate of any bonds secured by the 
assessments, or at the statutory prejudgment interest rate, as applicable.  In the event 
an assessment subject to direct collection by the District shall be delinquent, the District 
Manager and District Counsel, without further authorization by the Board, may initiate 
foreclosure proceedings pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or other applicable 
law to collect and enforce the whole assessment, as set forth herein.   
 

C. Future Collection Methods.  The decision to collect special assessments by any 
particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such 
method will be used to collect special assessments in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, 
regardless of past practices.   

 
 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified for collection.  That portion of the Assessment Roll which includes 
the Tax Roll Property is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the 
County Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall 
be paid to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep 
apprised of all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date 
of this Resolution, and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for 
such time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
  

Page 14



 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of July, 2019. 
 
ATTEST:      ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________   By:       
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 
Exhibit A: Budget 
Exhibit B: Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 

Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 
 

Page 15



Arborwood
Community Development District

Final Budget
  Fiscal Year 2019/2020

 October 1, 2019 - September 30, 2020

Page 16



Page 17



DEBT ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2014A-2

GENERAL FUND ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS

GENERAL FUND DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS 

DEBT ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2014A-1

DEBT DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2014A-1

MANAGEMENT

DEBT DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2014A-2

DEBT DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2014B

DEBT ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2018

DEBT DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS - SERIES 2018

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

GENERAL FUND INTEREST INCOME

GENERAL FUND OTHER REVENUES

PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE

SUPERVISOR FEES

ENGINEERING

Page 18



DRI TRAFFIC MONITORING

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FEE

LEGAL

ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL AUDIT

ARBITRAGE REBATE FEE

INSURANCE

LEGAL ADVERTISING

MISCELLANEOUS

POSTAGE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

TRUSTEE FEES

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES

WEBSITE

PROFESSIONAL FEE & PERMITS

ELECTRICITY

TREELINE PRESEVE MAINT - EXOTICS

Page 19



PANTHER MITIGATION MAINT - EXOTICS

STREET LIGHTING - UTILITY & MAINT

CAPITAL OUTLAY - SMALL

COUNTY APPRAISER & TAX COLLECTOR FEE

FLOWWAY MAINT

STORMWATER DRAINS INS & MAINT - (BRIDGETOWN ONLY)

STORMWATER DRAINS INS & MAINT - (SOMERSET ONLY)

DEBT PAYMENT (2014)

DEBT PAYMENT (2018)

MISCELLANEOUS DEBT EXPENSE

DISCOUNTS FOR EARLY PAYMENTS

MITIGATION MONITORING - (PARCEL C ONLY)

PRESERVE MAINT - (PARCEL C ONLY)

LAKE MAINT - AQUATIC CONTROL MAINT- (SOMERSET ONLY)

LAKE MAINT - EROSION MAINT- (SOMERSET ONLY)

PRESERVE MAINT - (SOMERSET ONLY)

FIELD INSPECTOR - (SOMERSET ONLY)

ENVIROMENTAL CONSULTING - PASSARELLA

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



© 2018 Microsoft Corporation © 2018 HERE 

12/05/18 PER SFWMD & CITY OF FORT MYERS ECD

04/02/19 PER CITY OF FORT MYERS ECD

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

---- ---- ----

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION BY

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11

PROPOSED

35'

ALLOWED

70'HEIGHT:

PROPOSED

COMMERCIAL

EXISTING

COMMERCIAL

12013 TREELINE AVENUE
FORT MYERS, FL  33912

USE:

FRONT: 25'
SIDE: 12.5'
REAR: 15'

MDP-3 (MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN)

TREELINE FORT MYERS, LLC
968 JEFFERY STREET
BOCA RATON, FL  33487

STANDARD PARKING SPACES = 66
HC SPACES = 3
TOTAL PARKING SPACES = 69

5 PARKING SPACE PER 1,000 SF OF FLOOR AREA
5 X14,800 SF/1,000 = 74 SPACES REQUIRED
REQUESTING 10% REDUCTION IN PARKING VARIANCE  74 (10%)=7.4

 74 - 7 = 67 SPACES
HC SPACES REQUIRED: 3

STANDARD STALL SIZE = 9' x 18'
HC STALL SIZE = 12' x 18'

THIS PROPERTY LIES IN FLOOD ZONE "X", AS PER FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP; COMMUNITY PANEL No. 1207C0434F, DATED 08/28/08.

BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

INFORMATION TAKEN FROM "BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY" FOR "TREELINE AVENUE" PREPARED BY
DENIS J. O'CONNELL, JR., PSM, OF METRON SURVEYING & MAPPING, LLC, DATED 7/21/2017.

WORTHINGTON VILLAGE
@ 12013 TREELINE AVE

968 JEFFERY STREET
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

ATTN:JASON REZNIK
C/O

REMLAND COMMERCIAL
ATTN: DAVID REMLAND

TRAFFIC ENGINEER:
AVID GROUP
2300 CURLEW ROAD SUITE 201
PALM HARBOR, FLORIDA 34683
PHONE: (727) 789-9500

ARCHITECT:
EMPAD ARCHITECTURE AND DESIGN
1901 ULMERTON RD, SUITE 195
CLEARWATER, FL 33762
PHONE: (727) 570-9506

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:
CJM DESIGNS, LLC
2116 RIVERS EDGE COURT
CLEARWATER, FLORIDA 33763
PHONE: (727) 430-5038

CIVIL ENGINEER/PLANNER:
AVID GROUP
2300 CURLEW ROAD SUITE 201
PALM HARBOR, FLORIDA 34683
PHONE: (727) 789-9500

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER:
UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
5971 COUNTY LAKES DRIVE
FORT MYERS, FLORIDA 33905
PHONE: (239) 995-1997

SURVEYOR:
METRON SURVEYING & MAPPING, LLC
10970 S. CLEVELAND AVENUE
FORT MYERS, FL 33907
PHONE: (239) 275-8575

WORTHINGTON VILLAGE @ 12013
TREELINE AVE

AVID GROUP JOB # 3273-001
DATE: 6/6/2018

THE DESIGN AND IDEAS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF PROFESSIONAL
SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AVID GROUP AND IS NOT TO BE USED FOR ANY OTHER
PROJECT WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM AVID GROUP.

DIMENSION INFORMATION SHOULD NOT BE OBTAINED BY SCALING THE PLANS. DIMENSION
INFORMATION NOT PROVIDED HEREIN CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING AVID GROUP, @
(727)789-9500.

CITY OF FORT MYERS, FLORIDA

TREELINE FORT MYERS, LLC

UTILITY COMPANIES

PROFESSIONAL TEAM

LOCATION MAP

SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 45 SOUTH, RANGE 25 EAST

MAP REFERENCES

NTS

BUILDING SETBACK REQUIREMENTS:

FLOOD ZONE:

PARKING (PROPOSED):

PARKING (REQUIRED):

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT:

LOT COVERAGE CALCULATIONS:

PROPERTY USE:

SITE DATA

PLAN INDEX

PROPERTY LOCATION:

PROPERTY ZONING:

PROPERTY OWNER:



FOR

SEE BOUNDARY SURVEY
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

11-45-25-P3-00003.0020
PROPERTY PARCEL I.D. NUMBER:

K
:\P

R
O

JE
C

TS
\3

20
0\

32
73

00
1\

D
W

G
\C

U
R

R
EN

T\
C

IV
IL

\3
27

30
01

-C
O

V.
D

W
G

,  
6/

18
/2

01
9 

4:
32

:1
5 

PM
,  

Er
ne

st
o 

D
ia

z

TH
ES

E 
PL

A
N

S 
M

A
Y 

N
O

T 
B

E 
C

O
PI

ED
 A

N
D

/ O
R

 M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

ER
M

IS
SI

O
N

 F
R

O
M

 A
VI

D
 G

R
O

U
P®

  C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

13

MDP-3 (MASTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN)
FUTURE LAND USE:

EXISTING PROPOSED

BUILDING AREA 0 SF 0.00% 14,800 SF 17.70%

VEHICULAR USE AREA 0 SF 0.00% 35,246 SF 42.14%

SIDEWALK/MISC CONC. AREA 0 SF 0.00% 4,030 SF 4.82%

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS AREA 0 SF 0.00% 54,076 SF 64.66%

TOTAL PERVIOUS AREA 83,635 SF 100.00% 29,559 SF 35.34%

TOTAL SITE AREA 83,635 SF 100.00% 83,635 SF 100.00%

R  E  V  I  S  I  O  N  S

SITE

WATER/SEWER/STREET LIGHTS:
CITY OF FORT MYERS
2200 SECOND ST
FORT MYERS, FL  33901
PHONE: (239) 321-7459 (NICOLE MONAHAN)

POWER:
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT
4215 UP THE GROVE LN
ENV/WP8 BLDG 8
WEST PALM BEACH, FL  33407
PHONE: (386) 586-6403 (JOEL BRAY)

TRAFFIC:
LEE COUNTY SIGNAL
5650 ENTERPRISE PKWY
FT. MYERS, FL  33905
PHONE: (239) 533-9500 (TOM WATTS)

TELECOM:
LEE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONER
1500 MONROE ST
FT MYERS, FL  33901
PHONE: (239) 533-7373 (MARK FUHRMAN)

COMCAST
2601 SW 145TH AVE
MIRAMAR, FL  33027
PHONE: (954) 447-8405 (LEONARD
MAXWELL-NEWBOLD)

CENTURYLINK
2820 CARGO ST. BUILDING A
FT MYERS, FL  33916
PHONE: (239) 336-2003 (CRAIG CLARK)

RECLAIMED WATER:
LEE COUNTY UTILITIES
1500 MONROE ST, 3RD FL UTILITIES
FT MYERS, FL  33901
PHONE: (239) 533-8150 (DAVID REYCRAFT)

IRRIGATION:
LEE COUNTY IRRIGATION
5650 ENTERPRISE PKWY
FT MYERS, FL  33905
PHONE: (239) 533-9400 (JOE SULAK)

SHEET LIST TABLE

SHEET NUMBER SHEET TITLE

1 COVER SHEET

2 NOTES & SPECIFICATIONS

3 DEMOLITION PLAN

4 HORIZONTAL CONTROL PLAN

5 PAVING, GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

6 UTILITY PLAN

7 NPDES NOTES

8 NPDES DETAILS

9 CROSS-SECTIONS

10 SITE DETAILS

11 SITE DETAILS 2

12 UTLITY DETAILS

13 UTILITY DETAILS 2

14 LIFT STATION DESIGN

15 ADA DETAILS

L1 LANDSCAPE PLAN

L2 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

L3 LANDSCAPE NOTES

06/19/2019

Page 35



   
 
  

 
 
 
 

 
June 28, 2019 
 
        
South Florida Water Management District                     
2301 McGregor Boulevard 
Fort Myers, FL  33901      
 
RE:  Worthington Village @ 12013 Treeline Avenue 
  Application No. 180927‐5 

 
 

To Whom It May Concern, 
 
On  behalf  of  the  Arborwood  Community  Development  District,  please  accept  this 
correspondence as written confirmation that  the proposed Worthington Village Retail project 
referenced  above  can  discharge  their  proposed  stormwater  management  system  for  retail 
development  into  Tract  YYYYY  (Conservation  Area  #12),  which was  recorded  per  Instrument 
#2006000449486, O.R. Book 4786, Pages 3932‐3965.   See attached exhibit  for the  location of 
Conservation Area #12 and the proposed Worthington Village retail project. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, feel free to call me at (239) 444‐5790.    
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Kathleen Dailey 
District Manager 
Arborwood Community Development District 
 

 

Page 36



 
2300 CURLEW ROAD, Suite 201 

PALM HARBOR, FLORIDA  34683 
PHONE (727) 789-9500 

 
  [AUTH#6139 LB7345]                             

WWW.AVIDGROUP.COM 
 

 
 

February 7, 2019 
 
South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) 
2301 McGregor Boulevard 
Fort Myers, FL  33901 
 
Re: Worthington Village @ Treeline Avenue 

Drainage Calculations  
Application # 180927-5 

 
Dear SFWMD,   
  
Treeline Fort Myers, LLC, herein referred to as the APPLICANT, is requesting a new individual 
ERP for the proposed project.  The APPLICANT proposes to construct a 14,800 square-foot 
retail building, which is located within the Arborwood DRI Master Plan, Parcel B (Basin B2).  
More specifically, the subject property is located on the east side of Treeline Avenue, across 
from Silver Ridge Boulevard, in the City of Fort Myers as Parcel # 11-45-25-P3-00003.0020.  
The property is 1.92 Acres, more or less.     
 
Previously, in April 2004, an ERP (#36-04853-P) was approved by SFWMD for the Arborwood 
development.  This approval was based on a conceptual plan only and showed no particular 
layout for this parcel.  This permit accounted for both attenuation and primary water quality 
treatment.  It assumed a maximum impervious area of 80% for future development and it also 
provided a total of 1.5 inches of water quality treatment over the entire Arborwood master 
plan, which would occur thru wet detention in several interconnected lakes and wetlands 
throughout the DRI.  The permit also required dry pre-treatment for all commercial parking 
lot runoff prior to discharge into the wetlands and other receiving lakes and flow ways.  The 
proposed project is located inside of Basin B2 of the conceptual permit.  This Basin established 
the following design criteria: 
 

 Impervious max = 80% 
 CN = 92 
 C = .706 
 FF min =    26.9 (NGVD29)  25.76 (NAVD88) 
 Road/Parking min =   25.4 (NGVD29)  24.26 (NAVD88) 
 NWL =     23.2 (NGVD29)  22.06 (NAVD88) 
 25-year DHWE =  25.4 (NGVD29)  24.26 (NAVD88) 
 100-year DHWE =   25.8 (NGVD29)  24.66 (NAVD88) 

 
Note:  See Appendix A for additional details from the existing permit referenced above.  

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
This commercial development proposes to collect all on-site runoff into a collection system of 
pipes and carry the flows to a dry pre-treatment spreader swale along the northern property 
line of the site.  The spreader swale has been adequately sized to provide water quality 
treatment for the first ½” across the site.  The enclosed calculations in Appendix B show that 
the treatment volume is adequate and will recover (based on an outfall orifice) within 72 
hours.  The spreader swale will ultimately outfall to Wetland #19 (per ex. Permit), which is 
adjacent to the property along the northern boundary.   
 
The applicant is proposing the following for the proposed development: 
 

 Impervious =   54,076 sf (1.24 Ac.)  (64.66%)  
 Pervious =   29,559 sf (0.68 Ac.)  (35.34%) 
 FF elevation =   25.80 (NAVD88) 
 Road/Parking min =  24.64 (NAVD88) 

 
Note:  Our project has been designed using the NAVD88 datum.  The conversion between the 
two datums is as follows:  NAVD88 = NGVD29 – 1.14 
 
Our project has been designed to remain consistent with the previously approved conceptual 
permit and not exceed the limits set forth above.  The proposed finished grades are proposed 
at elevations equal to or greater than the minimum elevations from the existing permit.  No 
additional water management calculations have been included in this permit application for 
stormwater attenuation.  Attached are treatment calculations for the first ½” across the site 
per the requirements of SFWMD.   
 
Please review the plans and calculations provided for further details.  If you have any 
questions, feel free to call me at (727) 234-5642 or you can email me at 
charlie.potter@avidgroup.com.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
AVID Group 
Agent       
 
 
 
Charlie Potter, P.E.        
Project Manager      
cc: AVID File 3273-001 

  

Page 38



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 1 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  

Page 39



Page 1 of 4Google Maps

8/17/2018https://www.google.com/maps/@26.5603663,-81.7857317,15z

PROPOSED SITE

Page 40



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 2 
 

FEMA FIRM MAP 
 
  

Page 41



Ü

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or Depth Zone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile  Zone X

Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood Hazard Zone X

Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zone X

Area with Flood Risk due to Levee Zone D

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X

Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard Zone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer

Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available

No Digital Data Available

Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of 
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below. 
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap 
accuracy standards

The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 8/17/2018 at 5:07:34 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.

This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes. 

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate 
point selected by the user and does not represent 
an authoritative property location.

Page 42



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 3 
 

SOILS MAP 
  

Page 43



26°  34' 20'' N
81

° 
 4

6'
 5

3'
' W

26°  34' 20'' N

81
° 
 4

6'
 4

9'
' W

26°  34' 15'' N

81
° 
 4

6'
 5

3'
' W

26°  34' 15'' N

81
° 
 4

6'
 4

9'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 17N WGS84

Feet

Meters
Map Scale: 1:809 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.

Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

FIGURE 4 
 

FLUCCS MAP 
  

Page 47



��������� ��	
���������������������������������

��� �!��"""#��	$%�#	�&���&��"�'&� � �%��#��&( ���

)*+,-.*/01123024567284942:;6<7,2=>)94?4>@A2=,-16<;B2CD:D2?4@=E>FDF24AF2CDGFHD3I?G:1*5B;-7;JD16K7L15

MNOPQRSTUVWXYZRSTU[\Y]̂ _̀ a]̂ _b

D3I?G0;,c)*K160;,cC51defghdefic;-;51-j@k7575;57<BJ7/71cl6*+B7,l-k;-755+7-;mJ1/*6l1,16;Jc75BJ;.2n7-k

1<Bk;575l7K1,-*+6m;,L;-1l*6715j=-k;5L;-1l*6715;-30C))DJ1K1Jhd/*6+6m;,;61;52;,c;-J1K1Jhf/*6;JJ*-k16;61;5j

opqrstuvwxyz{|tuvw

}~{���������

D3I?G0;,cC51defgh

defi

0*nhG1,57-.915j

?1c7+<hG1,57-.915j

87lkhG1,57-.915j

)*<<16L7;J

=,c+5-67;J

=,5-7-+-7*,;J

4�-6;L-7K1

91L61;-7*,;J

�B1,C6m;,

Fl67L+J-+61

9;,l1J;,c

CBJ;,c3*615-5

I;-16

I1-J;,c5

�;661,0;,c

@6;,5j2)*<<+,j2

C-7Jj

�����

Page 48



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX ‘A’ 
 

DRAINAGE INFORMATION FROM APPROVED 
PERMIT #36-04853-P 

  

Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



PROPOSED
PROJECT

Page 58



WORTHINGTON
VILLAGE @
TREELINE SITE
LOCATION

OUTFALL
STR FROM
BASIN B2

Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX ‘B’ 
 

WATER QUALITY TREATMENT CALCULATIONS 
 

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



APPENDIX ‘C’ 

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE GUILDELINES 

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



WORTHINGTON
VILLAGE RETAIL
PROJECT

CONSERVATION AREA #12
WETLAND #19

Page 70



W
O

R
T

H
IN

G
T

O
N

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 @
T

R
E

E
L

IN
E

 S
IT

E
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

O
U

T
F

A
L

L
S

T
R

 F
R

O
M

B
A

S
IN

 B
2

T
R

A
C

T
 Y

Y
Y

Y
Y

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 A

R
E

A
 #

12
W

E
T

L
A

N
D

 #
19

Page 71



WORTHINGTON
VILLAGE @ 12103
TREELINE
AVENUE

TRACT YYYYY
CONSERVATION AREA #12

WETLAND #19

Page 72



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-05 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2019/2020 AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF 
SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Arborwood Community Development District 

("District") to establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2019/2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2019/2020 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, LEE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2019/2020 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 15th day of July, 2019. 

 

 
ATTEST: ARBORWOOD 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 73



 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
Regular Meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Arborwood Community Development District 

will be held at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room at Somerset at The Plantation located at 
10401 Dartington Drive, Ft. Myers, Florida 33913 on the following dates: 

 
October 21, 2019  

November 18, 2019  
December 16, 2019  
January 20, 2020  
February 17, 2020  

March 16, 2020  
April 20, 2020  
May 18, 2020  
June 15, 2020 
July 20, 2020 

August 17, 2020  
September 21, 2020  

 
The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

Florida law for community development districts.  The meetings may be continued in progress without 
additional notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record.  Copies of the agenda for these meetings 
may be obtained from the District’s website or from the District Manager, Special District Services, located at 
2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410.   There may be occasions when one or more 
Supervisors will participate by telephone.  
 

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in these meetings is asked to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) 
hours before the meeting by contacting the District Manager at 561-630-4922 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-
4922.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1-800- 955-8770, 
who can aid you in contacting the District Office. 

 
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting with respect to any matter 

considered at a particular meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that 
accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

 
Kathleen Dailey 
District Manager 
Arborwood Community Development District 
 
www.arborwoodcdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  FORT MYERS NEWS-PRESS –  
 

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76


	Arborwood Community Development District - July 15, 2019 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 20, 2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Public Hearing
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2019-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Final Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2018-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Annual Assessment Roll

	Consider Approval of Treeline Fort Myers, LLC request for Discharge of Stormwater
	Consider Resolution No. 2019-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2019/2020 Meeting Schedule
	Financials




